
United Nations SPECIAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE, 152nd 
IIUTINC GENERAL 

ASSEMBLY 
FOURTEENTH SESSION 

Official Records • Monday, 16 November 1959, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 27: 
United Nations Relief and Works Agency for 

Palestine Refugees in the Near East (con
tinued): -

@)Report of the Director of the Agency; 
(!!)Proposals for the continuation of United 

Nations assistance to Palestine refugees: 
document submitted by the Secretary-

Page 

General •••• • •••• , • • • • • • • . • . • . . 11'! 

Chairman: Mr. Charles T. 0. KING (Liberia). 

AGENDA ITEM 27 

United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palesti ne 
Refugees in the Near Eas t (cont inued): 

~ Report of the Director of the Agency (.A/4213); 
(hl Proposals for the continuation of Un ited Nations assist

once to Palestine refugees: document submitted by the 
Sec retory-General (A/ 4121) 

1. Mr. DIMECHKIE (Lebanon) said that in the ten 
years of its existence the United Nations Relief and 
Works Agency for Palestine Refugees had proved 
itself indispensable not only for the r elief and welfare 
of the refugees but also for the preservation of peace 
in the Near East. It had been fortunate in having an 
almost uninterrupted succession of able Directors, 
including Mr. Leslie J. Cax:ver, who had maintained 
the high standards of the Agency in the difficult in
terim period before the appointment of the present 
Director, Mr. John H. Davis, whose humane anddedi
cated nature had already earned him the esteem of all. 

2. His delegation was hopeful that in spite of the 
deadlock that seemed to have been reached in regard 
to the refugee problem, the current year might be a 
decisive one for the future of UNRWA. The Director, 
in his annual r eport (A/4213), reminded the Assembly 
that the Agency's mandate would expire on 30 June 
1960. A footnote on page 1 of that report gave a long 
list of pertinent reports and resolutions of the General 
Assembly, which, unfortunately, could never promote 
a solution of the refugee problem unless an effort 
were made to enforce compliance with their direc
tives by the one Member State nowdisregardingthem. 
His delegation regretted that the great Powers which 
had supported General Assembly resolution 181 (ll) 
of 29 November 1947, providing for the partition of 
Palestine, had not shown the same zeal in forcing the 
new Jewish State to comply wlththeGeneralAssembly 
resolutions for the settlement of the Palestine refugee 
problem. He would like to stress certain aspects of 
that problem which, as the Director of UNRWA had 
stated in paragraph 11 of his report, affected every 
aspect of life and human endeavour in t he Near East. 

117 

NEW YORK 

3. The Palestine partition resolution, in formulating 
safeguards for the Arab population and their property 
r ights, had only confirmed already existing natural 
rights, which were recognized in section C of part I 
of that resolution as fundamental laws of the State 
over which no subsequent official actioncouldprevail. 
Therefore, as the representative of Saudi Arabia had 
said (150th meeting), Israel's sovereignty, unlike that 
of other States, was limited by the very instrument 
that created it. There were, moreover, certain cir
cumstances which he felt obliged to mention that were 
relevant to the problem under discussion. The Israel 
delegate had stat ed (150th meeting) that if the Arabs 
had not taken up arms to wipe out the infant State of 
Israel there would be no Arab refugee problem; but 
the reason why the Arab armies had entered Palestine 
on 15 May 1948, at the end of the six months between 
the date of the partition resolution and of the British 
withdrawal from the country, was to put an end to the 
series of massacres and depredations which had 
terrorized the Arab population. 

4. Count Bernadotte , theUnitedNationsMediator,had 
expressed doubts as to the eventual policy of Israel 
in his last report (A/648)11 when he said that it would 
be an offence against the principles of elemental jus
tice if the Arab refugees, innocent victims of the 
conflict between Arabs and Jews, were denied the r ight 
to return to their homes while Jewish immigrants were 
flowing into Palestine. The Zionist terrorists could 
not tolerate his view that the Government of Israel 
had a clear liability to restore private property to its 
Arab owners and to indemnify those owners for 
property wantonly destroyed. Fortunately, before his 
tragic assassination, Count Bernadotte had had time 
to convey his suggestions to the General Assembly, 
which had incorporated them in resolution 194 (ill) of 
11 December 1948. 

5. He pointed out, furthermore, that when Israel had 
applied, in November 1948, for admission to the United 
Nations, the application had been rejected in the first 
Instance because-as the Israel Yearbook, 195Q-1951, 
stated- some Members of the United Nations had 
wished to test Israel's intentions with regard to the 
refugees, boundaries and general issues before ad
mitting it to membership. Israel had then proceeded 
to give the impression that it was willing to abide by 
the 194 7 and 1948 resolutions, and had actually signed, 
on 12 May 1949, the Protocol drafted by the Con
ciliation Commission for Palestine at Lausanne. Y 
When the General Assembly admitted Israel as a 
Member of the United Nations, its membership was 
predicated on the assumption that it would implement 
the 1947 and 1948 resolutions; indeed, the preamble 
of the pertinent r esolution (General Assembly resolu-

!J Official RecoC'dS or the GeneC"al Assembly, Third Session, Supple
ment No, II . 
Y lbld, Four th Session, Ad Hoc Political Committee, annex, vol. II, 

document A/927, annex B. 

A/SPC/SR.l52 



_1:..:1:..:8 _______ ~G~e:!n!!:e:!.r~al~A~s~s~e:!!m~bly - Fourteenth Session - Special Political Committee 

tion 273 (ill)) contained the words "Recalling its 
resolutions of 29 November 1947 ard 11 December 
1_948 and taking note of the declarati< ns and explana
tions made by the representative of the Government 
of Israel before the Ad Hoc Politicd Committee in 
r espect of the implementation of t !le said resolu
tions•. But once admitted, Israel ha:l r epudiated the 
Lausanne Protocol and shifted to a course of defiance. 

6. According to the Israel representative, Israel 
feared no scrutiny of its record on Unit ed Nations 
resolutions, but certain features of t hat record were 
not exactly cr edit abl e. Israel had defied General 
Assembly resolution 181 (IT) by anneKing 21 per cent 
of the territory which was intende•l to be an Arab 
State, and continued to defy resolu1ion 194 (ill). It 
had not only defied resolution 303 (n) relat ing to the 
internationalization of Jerusalem, but had transferred 
its Government departments from Tel Aviv to Jeru
s alem. The Security Council had ado}: t ed no less than 
six different resolut ions condemning J srael on various 
grounds, including its failure to submit a report in 
connexion with the murder of Count Bernadotte, its 
attacks on Syria ·and Egypt and the massacre at Qibya. 
Not once had the Security Council fotmd it necessary 
to condemn an Arab State for an act of aggression. 

7. The representative of Israel had :;tated that there 
was a question of emphasis in parag::aph 11 of reso
lution 194 (ill) since the General Asaembly resolved 
that refugees should be "permitted" t•> return to their 
?orne~ and did not s tate that they had !l right t o do so, 
tmplymg that Israel could grant that permission or 
withhold it. That was certainly not the case. The 
a lternative was that compensation s l .ould be paid for 
the pr operty of those choosing not t:o return, but it 
was the refugees who were t o exert!lse t he choice 
and not Israel . There was not the sli1~htest indicatio~ 
in t he r esolution that the r ight of the r efugees to re
turn to their homes if they so wishe:l was subject to 
Israel 's permission. 

8. In any discussion of the future of UNRWA or t he 
solution of the refugee problem the att:tude of the refu
gees themselves was the most impo:~tant considera
tion, and it was clear that their cetermination to 
r eturn t o their homeland and regain c ::mtrol over their 
property had not in any way diminished over the past 
eleven or twe lve year s . The reports made by Director s 
of UNRWA all proved that the main l ope of the refu
gees was still the implementation of paragraph 11 of 
resolution 194 (ill), and one of the fo:·mer Directors, 
Mr . Henry R. Labouisse, a man of well-known in
t egrity and impartiality, had said th!it even old and 
illiterate r efugees knew of the e:>istence of that 
r esolution. Mr. Labouisse had sumnted up his views 
on the solution of the refugee problem by saying that 
in his opinion t here could be no ref l beginning of a 
solution unless the State of Israel g!lve to the refu
gees the choice between r epatriatior and compensa
tion called for in r esolution 194 (Ill.• . and that in the 
meantime t he community of nations should provide 
them with the basic essentials of life and with oppor
tunities to prepare their children, tl rough education 
and trai.ning, for productive lives. 

9. The Lebanese delegation felt that ·;he Committee' s 
and the Assembly's choice was betwe1m implementing 
the many resolutions on t he problem or accepting 
the fact of Israel' s non-compliance. However, until 
the r esolutions gua.ranteeing the rigtts of the Pales
tine Arabs were implemented, UNR'VA should con-

tinue its humane mission. One distressing feature of 
the present situation was the plight of the 7 ,000 mem
bers of the Azazma Bedouin tribe expelled by the 
Israel authorities across the demarcation line in 
1950. They were denied UNRWA aid and rations, al
though they were r eported by the Director of UNRWA 
to be "living close to starvation" (A/4213, para. 32). 
One matter not mentioned in the armual report, but 
already the subject of a decision by the Egyptian
Israel Mixed Armistice Commission in which Israel 
was condemned, was the further expulsion by Israel of 
354 members of t hat same tribe into the United Ar ab 
Republic 's territory in September 1959. His delega
tion felt that in the circumstances UNRWA should be 
authorized to maintain a special reserve fund in order 
to be able to meet such contingencies in the future . 
In addition, thousands of inhabitants of the frontier 
villages and the Gaza Strip wer e in the same state of 
need, and he hoped that the Director's appeal for re
lief of the continued distress of such people (A/4213 , 
paras. 29-33) would be fully heeded. 

10. It seemed wu-easonable to his delegation that the 
refugees, who were the legal owners of more than 
90 per cent of the territory occupied by Israel, should 
r emain dependent on international relief and un
certain contributions, and he would like once more 
to make the proposal that the Conciliation Commis
sion for Palestine be authorized to collect from the 
~rael Government all t he moneys due to the refugees 
m rent and compensation for the use of their proper
ties, thus r elieving the Agency of much of its financial 
burden. Since it was the United Nations that had de
cided to partition Palestine and had voted to admit 
Israel to membership, the responsibility for the refu
gees, their property and their future, was a sacr ed 
trust of the United Nations which it could not abdicate 
without resigning its r ole as the guarantor of world 
peace and the champion of justice and human rights. 

11. Mr. COMA Y (Israel) could not accept the Lebanese 
representative ' s version of developments in Palestine 
between the adoption on 29 November 1947 of General 
Assembly resolution 181 (II) on the partition of Pales
tine, and the termination of the British Mandate on 
14 May 1948. He had hoped t hat the discussion could 
be held to the present and future aspects of the 
Palestine refugee problem, but since other speaker s 
?ad insisted on going into past history, he felt justified 
m quoting from a number of contemporary documents 
Jn or der to illustrate the actions and t he attitude of 
the members of the Arab League during that period. 
He read extracts from reports of the United Nations 
Palestine CommiBsion to the Security Council and 
the General Assembly respectively and followed them 
with a number of quotations from Arab sources . t o the 
effect that the Palestine Arabs had been encouraged 
by certain Arab leaders to leave the country on the 
assumption that they would be able to retu~ soon. 
He also quoted an eye- witness account by British 
r esidents of events in Haifa in April 1948 corroborat
ing those statements and stating that the Jewish au
thor ities had urged the Arabs to stay in the country. 
In further illustration of t he Jewish attitude he quoted 
from a report by the British police forces in Haifa to 
British pollee headquarters at Jerusalem shortly be
fore the end of the Mandate, and from the Proclama
t ion of Independence of t he State of Israel on 14 May 
1948, which called upon the Arab inhabitants of Israel 
t o return to the ways of peace and play their part in 
the development of theStatewithfulland equal citizen-



152nd meeting- 16 November 1959 119 

ship. The Lebanese representative's description was 
thus contradicted by the official United Nations records 
of the time, by contemporary reports and by the 
reproaches which the Arab refugees themselves had 
subsequently directed against those who had persuaded 
them into flight. 

12. Mr. SHUKAIRY (Saudi Arabia) said thattheques
tion of responsibility for the war in Palestine was en
tirely irrelevant to the point at issue, which was the 
right of the refugees to repatriation. Israel was 
seeking t o s ide-track the Committee because it could 
not justify its refusal to comply with the Assembly's 
resolutions on the right of the refugees to return to 
their homes. The representative of Lebanon had 
referred to past events only in order to correct mis
statements made earlier in the debate. All the argu
ments put forward now by Israel had been tendered in 
1948, but the Assembly had overruled them and had 
adopted resolution 194 (III) setting forth the right of 
the Palestine refugees to repatriation. The Committee 
should concentrate upon that right and ignore all at
tempts to divert its attention to the question of re
sponsibility for the war, which was in any case the 
province of the Security Council. In t hat connexion, 
it was noteworthy that the Security Council had not 
on any occasion condemned as aggression the armed 
intervention to which the Arab States had been forced 
to resort in order to save innocent Palestinians from 

Litho in U.N. 

Zionist terroriSm. The Committee was examining the 
annual report of the Director of UNRWA and proposals 
for the continuation of United Nations assistance to 
Palestine refugees. It was Israel's defiance over the 
past e leven years which made it necessary to con
tinue that assistance. 

13. Mr. COMAY (Israel) said that the events of 1948 
had been brought up by the representatives of Saudi 
Arabia and Lebanon. His delegation would have pre
ferred to concentrate on the present problem. In reply 
to the representative of Saudi Arabia, he noted that at 
its 338th meeting on 15 July 1948, the Security Council 
had adopted a resolutionY clearly assigning responsi
bility for the renewal of hostilities in Palestine to the 
Arab League. Although Israel had agreed to a prolonga
tion of the truce in Palestine, the States members of 
the Arab League had rejected the successive appeals 
of the United Nations Mediator and of the Security 
Council. 

14. Mr. SHUKAmY (Saudi Arabia) said that the 
Security Council resolution in question did not con
demn the Arab armies for acts of aggression, but 
merely noted t he resumption of hostilities. 

The meeting rose at 12.10 p.m. 

1/ Official Records of the Securiry Council, Third Year. Supplement 
for july 1948, document S/902. 

77111 February 1960-2,125 




